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The Fort Halifax Blockhouse stands on the northern bank of the Sebasticook River
about 1/8 mile east of its junction with the Kennebec River at Winslow, Maine.
Modern development has had a substantial impact on the setting of the historic
structure. Immediately to the east are the right-of-way of the Maine Central
Railroad and U.S. Route 201. An abandoned warehouse, a railroad spur, and the
remains of a commercial access road are located immediately to the north. The

land to the west is now overgrown but the foundations of various commercial structures
are still visible there.

The original plan for Fort Halifax called for the construction of a four-pointed star
enclosing a central blockhouse and four barracks, one opposite each corner of the
main structure; a second blockhouse and palisade were to be erected on the hill
overlooking the fort. As actually built, the fort was square in shape and two
additional palisaded blockhouses were set on the adjacent hill. At the southeast
corner of the square was a 2-story log sentry box with a hipped roof. Most of the
eastern side consisted of a row of l-story barracks, 80 feet long and 20 feet

deep, with a shed roof. The northwestern corner and more than half of the

northern side were defined by the "fort house" containing officers' quarters, store-
rooms, and the armory. This building, measuring 40 by 80 feet, was 2 stories

high with the second overhanging on the front (south) elevation; at the ridge of

its dormered, gabled roof was a balustraded platform for sentries. At the northeastern
and southwestern corners of the fort were 2-story hip-roofed log blockhouses. Spaces
between the various buildings were filled by a log palisade, broken on the west

by two gates.

Of the original components of Fort Halifax, only one blockhouse, assumed to be that
at the southwestern corner, now survives. Constructed of hewn logs with dove-
tailed and pegged joints, it is approximately 20 feet square at the foundation and
27 feet square on the overhanging second story. The first floor walls are broken
by a doorway and windows on the north and another window on the west; there are
rifle ports in all four second floor walls and larger openings for cannon on the
south, east, and north. The eastern and northern openings are positioned to provide
enfilading fire along the palisade, which abutted the blockhouse at the center of
those walls. The doorway in the east wall of the second floor probably gave access
to a walkway along the palisade between the blockhouse and the sentry box to the
east. Slots in the floor of the overhang allowed troops in the blockhouse to fire
directly down on attackers.

Though the blockhouse was reraired after it was acquired by the Fort Halifax Chapter,
Daughters of the American Revolution in 1924, and further work--including installation
of a new roof and replacement of sills--has been done by the State of Maine, is it
estimated that 85-90% of the material in the structure is original. The pitted and
weathered condition of the exterior walls reflects their age. While the structure
appears to be essentially sound, lower timbers rest directly on the ground and

appear to be deteriorating because of moisture; these timbers may require repair

or replacement in the near future.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
This structure, located in Winslow, Maine, is the oldest extant wooden blockhouse

in the United States; it was erected as part of Fort Halifax, established in 1754,
and is now the only surviving element of that complex. In addition, the blockhouse
is an excellent example of its architectural type; built of hewn logs with dove-
tailed and pegged joints, the structure is approximately 20 feet square at the
foundation and 2 stories high with overhanging second story and hipped roof.

Use of Fort Halifax as a military post appears to have ended in 1766. The Fort
Halifax Chapter, Daughters of the American Revolution acquired the surviving
blockhouse in 1924 and maintained it until 1965 when it was given to the State

of Maine. Now operated as a museum, the structure is open to the public during the
summer months from ten to five daily.

Historical Background

Fort Halifax--named in honor of the Earle of Halifax, the British Secretary of State--
was begun in the summer of 1754 and substantially completed by the end of the following
year. The site, just east of the confluence of the Sebasticook and Kennebec Rivers,
was selected at the order of Royal Governor William Shirley. Major General John
Winslow drew the original plans for the fort and directed initial construction;
Winslow's successor at the fort, Captain William Lithgow, modified the plan and
supervised final construction. Isaac Ilsley of Falmouth (now Portland) and Gershom
Flagg were the chief carpenters.

Winslow's original plan called for a central blockhouse and four barracks surrounded

by a palisade in the shape of a four-pointed star; a second blockhouse and palisade were
to be erected on higher ground to the northeast of the main fortification. As

completed by Lithgow, the fort was square in shape with blockhouses at the northeast

and southwest corners, a sentry box at the southeast corner, barracks along the

eastern side, and a large building known as the "fort house'" (containing officers'
quarters, storerooms, and the armory) at the northwest corner. Spaces between the
various buildings were filled with palisades, then known as close pickets. Two
additional blockhouses with palisades were located on the adjacent hill.

Fort Halifax was built as part of the colonial defenses during the French and Indian
War (1754-63), but there is no evidence that it was ever the object of a direct
attack. However, members of the garrison were involved in skirmishes with Indians
in the surrounding area. Though some sources suggest that the fort ceased to
function as an active military post as early as 1763, muster records indicate that
it was garrisoned at least until October 1766.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
The boundaries of the national historic landmark designation for the Fort Halifax
Blockhouse are those of the property as owned by the State of Maine, Bureau cof
Parks and Recreation (identified as parcel 4 on the accompanying tax map). The
property was conveyed to the State of Maine by the Fort Halifax Chapter, Daughters
of the American Revolution, in a quite-claim deed dated January 19, 1965, which

defines the boundaries as follows:
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The blockhouse is generally assumed to stand on its original site. Though it has
recently been suggested that the structure may have been moved during the building
of the adjacent railroad in the 1840's, no direct evidence has yet been found

to support that theory. The Maine Bureau of Parks and Recreation, which
administers the property, hopes in the near future the resolve any questions
regarding the site of the blockhouse (and the original lines of the full fort
complex) through archeological investigation.
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After that time, the fort and surrounding land passed to private owners. The
individual structures were allowed to deteriorate and eventually all of them
except one blockhouse were demolished. 1In 1924 the Fort Halifax Chapter,
Daughters of the American Revolution acquired and repaired the surviving
blockhouse. In 1966 the structure was conveyed to the State of Maine's Bureau
of Parks and Recreation, which now maintains it as an historic site.
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Southerly by the Sebasticook River; easterly by the westerly line of the location
of the Maine Central Railroad Company; northerly by a line parallel with the north
side of the old block house, and twenty (20) feet distant therefrom, measuring

on a line drawn at right angles with said northerly side; westerly by a line
parallel with the westerly side of said block house and twenty (20) feet distant
therefrom measuring on a line drawn at right angles with said westerly side.



